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WASHINGTON, DC 20510

October 18, 2018

The Honorable Wilbur Ross, Jr.
Secretary of Commerce

U.S. Department of Commerce
1401 Constitution Avenue, N.W.
Washington, D.C. 20230

Dear Secretary Ross:

We write to express serious concern over a recent action by the International Trade
Administration to reverse an earlier decision in the antidumping proceeding involving frozen fish
fillets from the Socialist Republic of Vietnam. This reversal will adversely impact catfish
farmers and processors in our states, and is inconsistent with this Administration’s commitment
to strong enforcement of U.S. trade laws.

In the current administrative review, we understand that a large Vietnamese exporter
(Hung Vuong Group or HVG) failed to respond appropriately to the Department’s antidumping
questionnaire after having been granted two deadline extensions. As a result, in keeping with its
commitment to strong enforcement of U.S. policies against unfair trade, and consistent with
long-standing practice, Commerce rejected the late and incomplete HVG submission. In April,
the Embassy of Vietnam filed a letter requesting reconsideration of HVG’s untimely
data. Again, Commerce refused to reconsider its decision, explaining that it is HVG’s
responsibility under current regulations to ensure its responses are complete.

However, we have been informed that an official from the Embassy of Vietnam met with
Commerce Department officials on May 15, 2018. The following week, Commerce reversed its
decision and allowed HVG to refile its untimely response. Commerce then compounded the
negative effect of its decision on American catfish farmers by extending the deadline for its
preliminary finding, allowing HVG more time to justify the data in its late filing. As a result,
HVG received a preliminary finding of no dumping.

We are troubled by this series of events, as in recent years Commerce has consistently
found significant dumping by Vietnamese fish fillet exporters, and has determined repeatedly
that many exporters have been uncooperative in responding to the Department’s
questionnaires. The decision by Commerce to consent to a Vietnamese Embassy official’s
request to allow uncooperative Vietnamese parties to impede your Department’s proceeding with
further delays will have a catastrophic effect on the domestic industry. Our catfish farmers rely

on strong enforcement of U.S. antidumping laws to ensure they can compete on a level playing
field.

As Commerce officials travel to Vietnam in the near future to verify HVG reported data,
we respectfully request that you strongly urge them to conduct this verification rigorously, and
not tolerate further delays or obstruction from HVG or other Vietnamese officials. Vietnamese



respondents or any other parties that fail to comply with requests for timely and accurate
information, do not deserve more favorable treatment than U.S. catfish producers. We hope your
Department will remain committed to strong implementation of U.S. antidumping laws, and that
procedural rules will be applied to all parties in an impartial manner.

Thank you for your attention on this important matter.

W%‘W’ W%

CINDY HYDE-SMITH RICHARD SHELBY
United States Senator United States Senator
N
\ @_ mw

ROG]S}R):. WICKER JOHN BOOZMAN

United States Senator United States Senator

/\); // assie //yj M/J T“ 6:25
—
BILL CASSIDY, M.D. TOM COTTON
United States Senator United S t¢§8$nator

JOHN KENNEDY  DOUG JGNES
United States Senator United States Senator



